
THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: May 24, 2021

TO: James Nagelvoort, Director and City Engineer, Engineering & Capital Projects

FROM:

SUBJECT:

Cindy Crocker, Acting Deputy Director, Engineering & Capital ProjectstJ tJ...a �
Sole Source Agreement for Emergency Repair of Sewer Pump Station 1, P:���

Estimated Amount: 

Contractor:

Estimated Completion:

Recommended Action:

$500,000 (Not-to-Exceed)

Orion Construction

December 31, 2023

Approve Sole Source Request

Pursuant to SDMC §22.3108 (a), "Exceptions to Advertisement and Competitive Award of
Engineering & Capital Projects Contracts'' , this is to certify that a sole source agreement with
the contractor named above is necessary and that strict compliance with a competitive 
process would be unavailing or would not produce an advantage, and soliciting bids or
proposals would be undesirable, impractical or impossible for the following reasons: 

JUSTIFICATION:

As of October 1, 2020, at Pump Station No. 1, the City had 5 of 6 main pumps available and
operational. While the pump station would be without any spare pumps, this would have 
been sufficient to handle the flow at full capacity and prevent the risk of a spill event. This
situation changed and was exacerbated on December 16, 2020 when Main Pump No. 5 failed
to be operational as well. The Public Utilities Department (PUD) staff has made many 
attempts to repair each of the pumps without success. We have determined that PUD does
not currently have adequate resources to perform the necessary repairs. 

PUD is requesting that an emergency project be initiated to acquire an engineer and/or
contractor to perform inspections, develop a report of their findings, and perform the repairs
of both main pumps numbers 5 and 6 at Pump Station 1. The need for this emergency project
is acute, as a sewerage spill event would cause significant environmental damage, threaten 
wildlife habitat and endanger public health and safety. 
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The necessary repair is beyond the capabilities of PUD; therefore, it is requested this project 
be designated an emergency and a sole source contract be approved. 

Additional information related to this request can be found in Enclosure 1.

AGREEMENT VALUE & DURATION: 

Unless a modification to the agreement and this sole-source request is issued, the total fee 
for these services shall not exceed the amount noted above. The term of the agreement will be 
in effect from date of the agreement execution and shall not exceed the contract completion 
date noted above. 

APPROVED BY: 

agelvoort, Director, Engineering & Capital Projects 
Date: 5/l)/zt 

Enclosure: 1. Memorandum from Juan Guerreiro to James Nagelvoort dated January 8, 2021. 

cc: Shauna Lorance, Director, Public Utilities Department 
Juan Guerreiro, Interim Executive Assistant Director, Public Utilities Department 
Myrna Dayton, Assistant Director, Engineering & Capital Projects 
Craig Boyd, Interim Deputy Director, Public Utilities Department 
Carrie Purcell, Interim Deputy Director, Engineering & Capital Projects 
Surraya Rashid, Deputy Director, Public Utilities Department 
Mike Rosenberg, Deputy Director, Public Utilities Department 
Luis Schaar, Deputy Director, Engineering & Capital Projects 
Nevien Antoun, Assistant Deputy Director, Engineering & Capital Projects 
Abi Palaseyed, Assistant Deputy Director, Engineering & Capital Projects 
Tom Rosales, Interim Assistant Director, Public Utilities Department 
Stephen Cann, Senior Civil Engineer, Public Utilities Department 
Jong Choi, Senior Civil Engineer, Engineering & Capital Projects 
Catherine Dungca, Senior Civil Engineer, Engineering & Capital Projects 
Vien Hong, Senior Civil Engineer, Public Utilities Department 
Stephen Samara, Principal Contract Specialist, Engineering & Capital Projects 
Manuel Gonzalez, Associate Civil Engineer, Engineering & Capital Projects 



DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

January 8, 2021 

The City of San Diego 

MEMORANDUM 

Enclosure 

James Nagelvoort, Director, Engineering & Capital Projects Department 

Juan Guerreiro, Interim Executive Assistant Director, Public Utilities 
Department 

Request of Emergency Declaration to Inspect & Repair Sewer Pump Station No. 
1 Pump 5 & 6 

This memorandum is to request your concurrence that the immediate inspection, assessment 
and repair of two (2) main pumps at Sewer Pump Station No. 1 is an emergency project, 
pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15269. The Public Utilities Department believes that the 
project meets the CEQA guidelines definition of Emergency Projects in Section 15269 (b) and 
(c): 

"(b) Emergency repairs to publicly or privately owned services facilities necessary to maintain service 
essential to the public health, safety, or welfare. 
(c) Specific actions necessary to prevent or mitigate an emergency. This does not include long-term
projects undertaken for the purpose of preventing or mitigating a situation that has a low probability
of occurrence in the short-term."

The City of San Diego's Public Utilities Department (PUD) Wastewater Treatment & Disposal 
(WWTD) Division operates and maintains an extensive wastewater collections system that 
includes two (2) large sewer pumping stations and six (6) smaller sewer pumping stations. 
The capacity of each of the pumping stations is dependent on the number of pumps that are 
available and functional/operational. Pump Station No. 1 receives sewer flow from the South 
Metro Interceptor and pumps this flow to Pump Station No. 2. The average daily flow from 
Pump Station No. 1 is 50-75 MGD. The design capacity of Pump Station No. 1 is 155 MGD. 
Pump Station No. 1 requires five (5) duty and one (1) standby for a total of six (6) main 
pumps. Currently there are only four (4) main pumps available and operational. Main Pump 
No. 5 has been out of service since December 16, 2020 and needs an overhaul of its induction 
motor and Main Pump No. 6 has been out of service since March 16, 2020 and has motor 
starter issues. Pump Station No. 1 has reduced capacity due to these two (2) main pumps 
being out of service. It is crucial to have all main pumps available and operational to 
maintain the system at optimal levels and to avoid the risk of the possibility of a sanitary 
sewer overflow(s) (SSOs) due to the pump station being overwhelmed by flows due to heavy 
rainstorms. 

The Public Utilities Department made preparations for the winter storm season, considered 
to run from October 1st through May 1st , in the summer months preceding the rainy period. 
Preparations included having pumping systems, major facilities and equipment ready for 
storm events that the City's systems are designed and capable of handling. PUD's pump 
stations are designed to carry their respective capacity reliably and without failure. On 
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October 1, 2020, at Pump Station No. 1, the City had 5 of 6 main pumps available and 
operational. While the pump station would be without any spare pumps, this would have 
been sufficient to handle the flow at full capacity and prevent the risk of a spill event. This 
situation was changed and exacerbated on December 16, 2020 when Main Pump No. 5 failed 
to be operational as well. PUD staff has made many attempts to repair each of the pumps 
without success. We have determined that PUD does not currently have adequate resources to 
perform the necessary maintenance/repairs. 

PUD is requesting that an emergency project be initiated to acquire an engineer and/or 
contractor to perform inspections, develop a report of their findings, and perform repairs of 
both Main Pump No. 5 and 6 at Pump Station No. 1. The need for this emergency project is 
acute, as a sewerage spill event would cause significant environmental damage, threaten 
wildlife habitat, and endanger public health and safety. 

This emergency project is located at Sewer Pump Station No. 1, 3550 E. Harbor Drive, 
National City, CA 91950. 

Thank you for your quick response to this request. If you have any questions or require 
additional information, please contact Tom Rosales, PUD Interim Assistant Director, at 
(858) 292-6418, or Craig Boyd, PUD Interim Deputy Director at (858) 654-4433,

� 
Juan Guerreiro 
Interim Executive Assistant Director 

cc: Alia Khouri, Deputy Chief Operating Officer 
Shauna Lorance, Director, Public Utilities Department 
Tom Rosales, Interim Assistant Director, Public Utilities Department 
Surraya Rashid, Deputy Director, Public Utilities Department 
Mike Rosenberg, Deputy Director, Public Utilities Department Craig 
Boyd, Interim Deputy Director, Public Utilities Department Stephen 
Cann, Senior Civil Engineer, Public Utilities Department Vien Hong, 
Senior Civil Engineer, Public Utilities Department 
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